
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

PINOLE CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA 

TUESDAY 
FEBRUARY 4, 2020 

  
6:00 P.M.  

 
2131 Pear Street, Pinole, California 

 

  
Roy Swearingen, Mayor  

Norma Martinez-Rubin, Council Member 
Peter Murray, Council Member 

Vincent Salimi, Council Member 
Anthony Tave, Council Member 

 
Public Comment: The public is encouraged to address the City Council on any matter listed on the agenda or on 
any other matter within its jurisdiction subject to the rules of decorum described in Council Resolution 2019-03.  If you 
wish to address the City Council, please complete the gold card that is provided at the rear entrance to the Council 
Chambers and hand the card to the City Clerk.  City Council will hear public comment on items listed on the agenda 
during discussion of the matter and prior to a vote.  City Council will hear public comment on matters not listed on the 
agenda during Citizens to be Heard, Agenda Item 5.  

 
Americans With Disabilities Act:  In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need 
special assistance to participate in a City Meeting or you need a copy of the agenda, or the agenda packet in an 
appropriate alternative format, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (510) 724-8928.  Notification at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting or time when services are needed will assist the City staff in assuring that reasonable  
arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or service.  Assisted listening devices are available 
at this meeting.  Ask the City Clerk if you desire to use this device. 
 
Note:  Staff reports are available for inspection at the Office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 2131 Pear Street during 
regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday – Thursday, and on the City Website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  
You may also contact the City Clerk via e-mail at hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us 
 
COUNCIL MEETINGS ARE TELEVISED LIVE ON CHANNEL 26.  They are retelecast the following Thursday at 6:00 
p.m.  The Community TV Channel 26 schedule is published on the city’s website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  City Council 
meetings are video-streamed live on the City’s website, and remain archived on the site for five (5) years. 

Ralph M. Brown Act.  Gov. Code § 54950.  In enacting this chapter, the Legislature finds 
and declares that the public commissions, boards and councils and the other public 
agencies in this State exist to aid in the conduct of the people's business.  It is the intent of 
the law that their actions be taken openly and that their deliberations be conducted openly.  
The people of this State do not yield their sovereignty to the agencies, which serve them.  
The people, in delegating authority, do not give their public servants the right to decide what 
is good for the people to know and what is not good for them to know.  The people insist on 
remaining informed so that they may retain control over the instruments they have created. 

1 of 72

http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/
http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/


 

Pinole City Council  

Agenda –February 4, 2019 

Page 2 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY 
TROOPS 

 

2. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT 
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision: (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself /herself from discussing and voting on the 
matter; and (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made, Cal. Gov't Code § 87105. 
 

3. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION   
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning 
into the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.   
 

A.       CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

Gov. Code § 54957.6 

Agency designated representatives:  City Manager Andrew Murray, Assistant 

City Manager Hector De La Rosa 

Employee organizations: PPEA & IAFF 
 

OPEN SESSION WILL COMMENCE UPON COMPLETION OF CLOSED 
SESSION DISCUSSIONS, WHICH MAY OCCUR BEFORE 7:00 PM 

 
 

4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION 
 

5. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments) 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes, and is subject 
to modification by the Mayor.   Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a 
matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The 
City Council may direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future 
Council meeting. 
 

6. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS 
 
A. Proclamations  

1. Recognizing Pinole Valley High School Water Polo Team 
 

2. Honoring Pinole Firefighter of the Year, Eric Holt 
 

3. Honoring Pinole Police Officer of the Year, Jonathan Porter 
 

 
B. Presentations / Recognitions 

 
 

7. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These items 
will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or Council 
member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the Consent 
Calendar. Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent Calendar. 
 

A. Approve the Minutes of the Meeting of January 21, 2020 
 

2 of 72



City Council   

Agenda – February 4, 2019 

Page 3  

B. Receive the January 18, 2020 – January 31, 2020  List of Warrants in the 
Amount of $272,194.19 and the January 24, 2020 Payroll in the Amount of 
$416,231.83 

 
C. Ordinance Amending The Pinole Zoning Code To Change The Approval 

Authority For Design Review Of Single Family Homes [Action:  Adopt Ordinance 
on Second Reading (Casher)] 

 
D. Receive the Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter Ending December 31, 

2019 [Action:  Receive and File Report (A. Miller)] 

 
E. Resolution Approving City Manager Andrew Murray’s Residence Outside Of The 

City Of Pinole [Action: Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Casher)] 

 
 

F. Authorize Revised Response To Grand Jury Report No. 1907, "Stormwater Trash 
Reduction" [Action:  Authorize Mayor to Sign Revised Response (T. Miller)] 

 
 

G. Declare The Listed Property As Surplus And Designate A Purchasing Officer To 
Dispose Of The Listed Property In Accordance With The Procurement Policy (T. 
Miller) 

 
   
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to the 
completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. An official who engaged in 

an ex parte communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose the communication on the record 
prior to the start of the Public Hearing. 

 
  NONE 
 

9. OLD BUSINESS 
 

NONE 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS 

 NONE 
 

11. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  
 

A. Mayor Report 
1. Announcements 

 

B. Mayoral & Council Appointments 
 
C.   City Council Committee Reports & Communications 

 

D. Council Requests For Future Agenda Items 
 

E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 
  
F. City Attorney Report 

 

3 of 72



City Council   

Agenda – February 4, 2019 

Page 4  

12. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of February 18, 2020 In 
Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  

 

I hereby certify under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing Agenda was 
posted on the bulletin board at the main entrance of Pinole City Hall, 2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA, and on the City’s website, not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting date set 
forth on this agenda.  
 
POSTED:  January 30, 2020 at 4:00 P.M. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 

4 of 72



7A 

Pinole City Council  
Minutes – January 21, 2020 
Page 1 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 
January 21, 2020 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY 

TROOPS 
 
The City Council Meeting was held in the Pinole Council Chambers, 2131 Pear Street, Pinole, 
California.  Mayor Swearingen called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order 5:01 p.m. 
and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
2. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT 
 

A. COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT 
 
Roy Swearingen, Mayor 
Norma Martinez-Rubin, Mayor Pro Tem  
Peter Murray, Councilmember  
Vincent Salimi, Councilmember  
Anthony Tave, Councilmember, arrived at 6:04 p.m. 
 
 B. STAFF PRESENT 
Andrew Murray, City Manager 
Hector De La Rosa, Assistant City Manager 
Heather Iopu, City Clerk 
Eric Casher, City Attorney 
Alex Mog, Assistant City Attorney 
Tamara Miller, Development Services Director/City Engineer 
Chris Wynkoop, Fire Chief 
Andrea Miller, Finance Director 
 
City Clerk Iopu announced the agenda was posted on January 16, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. All legally 
required notice was provided.  
 
City Clerk Iopu announced that additional materials pertaining to Item 8A and 9A on the Agenda 
were provided at the dais for the Council and copies were placed at the rear of the Chamber for 
the public.  
 
Following an inquiry to the Council, the Council reported there were no conflicts with any items 
on the agenda.   
 
 
3. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION   
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning 
into the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.     
 

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT 
Gov. Code § 54957 
Title: City Manager 

 
B.       CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Gov. Code § 54956.9(d)(2)  

Number of Potential Cases:  1 

5 of 72



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – January 21, 2020 
Page 2 
 

 

C.       CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

Gov. Code § 54957.6 

Agency designated representatives:  City Manager Andrew Murray, Assistant 

City Manager Hector De La Rosa 

Employee organizations: PPEA & IAFF 

 

D.       CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

Gov. Code § 54957.6 

Agency designated representatives:  City Manager Andrew Murray, Assistant 

City Manager Hector De La Rosa, Legal Counsel Cepideh Roufougar 

Employee organizations: IAFF 
 
 

4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
Mayor Swearingen reconvened the meeting at 7:20 p.m. There was no reportable action from 
the Closed Session. 
 
 
5. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments) 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes, and is subject 
to modification by the Mayor.   Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a 
matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The 
City Council may direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future 
Council meeting. 
 
The following speakers addressed the City Council:  
 
Francis Adebola-Wilson, Pinole Library Branch Manager, announced upcoming events at the 
Pinole Library. 
 
Debbie Long, resident of Pinole, spoke regarding the restrooms at the Wastewater Treatment 
plant.  Expressed concerns regarding maintenance issues and asked if staff would be 
addressing the issues..  Also noted there are issues at the parking lot at the plant. 
 
Rafael Menis, resident of  Pinole, encouraged members of the community to check their voter 
registration status before the upcoming primary election in March 2020. 
 
Devin Murphy, resident of Pinole, spoke regarding the Charter City item.  Encouraged the 
public to support an effort to increase tourism in the city by using the hashtag, #visitPinole in 
social media. 
 
 
6. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS 
 

A. Proclamations  
 

None.  
 

6 of 72



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – January 21, 2020 
Page 3 
 

B. Presentations / Recognitions 
1.   Introduction of Senior Project Manager Misha Kaur & Code Enforcement     

Officer Justine Sidie 
 
Tamara Miller, Development Services Director/City Engineer introduced Misha Kaur as the new 
Senior Project Manager. Ms. Kaur thanked the Council and staff for the opportunity to serve the 
City. 
 
Planning Manager David Hanham introduced Code Enforcement Officer, Justine Sidie.  Ms. 
Sidie expressed her thanks for the opportunity to continue to serve the City. 

 

2.   PG&E Community Wildfire Safety Program Presentation by Pamela Perdue 
 
Presentation given by PG&E representatives Treva Reed and Pamela Perdue regarding the 
Community Wildfire Program and updates specific to the PSPS events.  Discussed the 
improvements to the program and notification procedures. 
 
Council members asked questions. 
 
Maureen Toms, resident of Pinole, encouraged public to sign up for cwsalerts.com to get 
updates on PSPS events.  Announced pending litigation including SB431 that addresses cell 
providers requirements for service during planned power outage events.   
 
Council members asked questions of PG&E representatives.  PG&E representatives responded 
to questions and announced methods to sign up for alerts regarding future PSPS safety 
information. 
 
Council members made comments regarding the details of the presentation. PG&E 
representatives responded.  
 
7. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These items 
will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or Council 
member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the Consent 
Calendar. Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent Calendar. 
 

Rafael Menis, resident of Pinole, spoke regarding Item 7C, discussed details of the report.  
Asked if staff has reviewed the other MOUs to ensure that other errors had not been made 
 
Rafael Menis, resident of Pinole, spoke regarding Item 7F. Asked regarding details of the 115 
Trust, made comments regarding the report.   
 
Council members, asked questions regarding Item 7F.  
 
Finance Director Miller responded to questions regarding details of the CAFR report.  
 

A. Approve The Minutes Of The Meeting Of December 17, 2019 
 

B. Receive the December 7, 2019 – January 17, 2020  List Of Warrants In the 
Amount Of $1,438,695.62; the December 13, 2019 Payroll In The Amount Of 
$520,775.04; the December 27, 2019 Payroll In the Amount Of $407,395.58; And 
the January 10, 2020 Payroll In The Amount Of $537,420.01  

 

7 of 72



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – January 21, 2020 
Page 4 
 

C. Approve And Authorize The City Manager To Execute A Settlement Agreement 
Between The City Of Pinole And Fire Department Employees [Action: Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation (De La Rosa)] 

 
D. Adopt A Resolution To Authorize The City Manager To Execute An Amendment 

To The Contract With Raney Planning & Management Inc. For Environmental 
Review In An Amount Not To Exceed $46,097.00 [Action: Adopt Resolution per 
Staff Recommendation (T. Miller)] 

 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY ITEM (Item 7E Only) 

E. Adopt A Resolution Approving The Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule For 
July 1, 2020 – June 30, 2021 (ROPS 20-21) For The Pinole Successor Agency In 
The Amount Of $3,603,904 [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation 
(A. Miller)] 

 
F. Receive And Accept The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) For 

The Fiscal Year (FY) Ended June 30, 2019 [Action:  Receive and File Report 
(A.Miller)] 

 
G. Adopt A Resolution Authorizing The Filing Of An Application For Allocation Of 

Fiscal Year 20-21 Transportation Act Article 3 Pedestrian/ Bicycle Project Funding 
[Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (T. Miller)] 

 
ACTION:  Motion by Council Members Martinez-Rubin/Tave to approve Consent Calendar 
Items A-D, F and G.  
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 

Ayes:   Swearingen, Martinez-Rubin, Murray, Salimi, Tave 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None  
 

ACTION:  Motion by Board Members Martinez-Rubin/Tave to approve Successor Agency 
Consent Calendar Item E.  
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 

Ayes:   Swearingen, Martinez-Rubin, Murray, Salimi, Tave 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None  

 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to the 
completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. An official who engaged in 
an ex parte communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose the communication on the record 
prior to the start of the Public Hearing. 
 

A.        Ordinance Amending The Pinole Zoning Code To Change The  
 Approval Authority For Design Review Of Single Family Homes. [Action:   

Conduct Public Hearing and Approve First Reading of  Ordinance (Casher)] 

 

8 of 72



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – January 21, 2020 
Page 5 
 

City Attorney Casher introduced the item.  Assistant City Attorney Mog presented staff report 
highlighting the details of the report. 
 
At 8:49 Mayor Swearingen opened the Public Hearing.  The following speakers addressed the 
City Council:   
 
Rafael Menis, resident of Pinole, spoke in opposition of the item.   Expressed concern 
regarding the associated fees and burden on staff and the public. 
 
Debbie Long, resident of Pinole, spoke in favor of the ordinance.  Encouraged the Council to 
adopt the ordinance in order to ensure that the public has the opportunity to participate in the 
review process. 
 
Council members asked questions of staff regarding the history of the item and the fees 
associated with it. 
 
Council members held discussion regarding possible options for the design review and approval 
structure.    
 
ACTION:  Motion by Council Members Murray/Martinez-Rubin To Introduce and Waive 
First Reading of An Ordinance Amending The Pinole Zoning Code To Change The 
Approval Authority For Design Review Of Single Family Homes from the Zoning 
Administrator to a Subcommittee of the Planning Commision 
 
Vote:   Passed  4-1 

Ayes:   Swearingen, Martinez-Rubin, Murray, Salimi 
Noes:   Tave 
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None  

 
 

9. OLD BUSINESS 
 
A         Provide Direction On Initial Draft Charter And Process For  

Public Outreach [Action:  Discuss and Provide Direction (Mog)] 

 
Assistant City Attorney Mog introduced the item and highlighted details of the staff report.   
 
Rafael Menis, spoke regarding listed potential powers that could be listed in a charter. 
Expressed concern that the powers listed could be more broad then intended. 
 
Devin Murphy,  spoke regarding community engagement throughout the process of developing 
the Charter.  Encouraged the City to start early in taking action on educating the public and the 
importance of digital outreach.  
 
Council members asked questions of staff.  Staff responded to questions. 
 
Discussion held by Council members on the potential implications, risks and benefits of 
becoming a Charter City. 
 
The Council gave consensus to set a special meeting to discuss the issue within the next 
month. 
 

9 of 72



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – January 21, 2020 
Page 6 
 

ACTION:  Motion by Council Members Murray/Tave to extend the meeting to 11:15 p.m. 
 

Ayes:   Swearingen, Martinez-Rubin, Murray, Salimi, Tave 
Noes:   None 
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None  

 
 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Review, Discuss, And Provide Direction To Staff On Awarding Grants Related To 
The Farmers’ Market To Local Pinole Non-Profit Organizations [Action:  Discuss and 
provide direction (De La Rosa)] 

 
Assistant City Manager De La Rosa introduced the item and provided background information. 
 
Council held discussion and gave direction to extend the deadline for the application period and 
extend an invitation to known youth groups in Pinole to apply. 
 

 
11. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  

 

A. Mayor Report 
1. Announcements 
 

Mayor Swearingen announced the Mayor’s Conference in Pinole. Reviewed the topics of the 
meeting; regional transportation and housing issues.   
 

 

B. Mayoral & Council Appointments 
 

None 
 

C. City Council Committee Reports & Communications 
 
Norma Martinez-Rubin announced her attendance at the January WestCat meeting.  Introduced 
City Clerk Iopu who presented an update on local Census 2020 information.  
 
Councilmember Murray attended WCCIMA meeting and announced new Executive Director, 
Peter Holtzclaw.  Reported discussion on recycling service and budget adjustments. 
 
 

D. Council Requests For Future Agenda Items 
 

Council member Tave asked for an update on the fire study.  Staff reported it will be coming 
back at an upcoming meeting. 
 
Council member Tave asked for a future agenda item to discuss minimum wage.  No consensus 
given. 
 

 

10 of 72



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – January 21, 2020 
Page 7 
 

E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 
 
City Manager Murray announced the special City Council meeting for a workshop on the  
Strategic Plan on January 25, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. at the Pinole Youth Center. 
 
 

F. City Attorney Report 
 
City attorney reported that the smoking ordinance related to tobacco products adopted last year 
is now in full effect.  
 
Mayor Swearingen announced the passing of Randy Eikenbary, a former Pinole Police Officer 
and made comments honoring his life and service to Pinole. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT to the Special City Council Meeting of January 25, 2020 In 

Remembrance of Amber Swartz and Randy Eikenbary, and overseas military. 
 
At 11:22 p.m., Mayor adjourned to the Special City Council Meeting of January 25, 2020 In 
Remembrance of Amber Swartz 

 

 
 

Submitted by: 
 
________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk  
 
 

11 of 72



12 of 72



13 of 72



14 of 72



15 of 72



16 of 72



17 of 72



18 of 72



19 of 72



20 of 72



21 of 72



22 of 72



23 of 72



24 of 72



25 of 72



26 of 72



   

  CITY COUNCIL  
  REPORT 7C 

 
 
DATE: FEBRUARY 4, 2020 
 
TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ERIC S. CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY 
 
COPY: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PINOLE ZONING CODE TO 

CHANGE THE APPROVAL AUTHORITY FOR DESIGN REVIEW OF 
SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council waive the second reading of and adopt the 
proposed ordinance that would change the approving authority for design review of 
single family homes from the Zoning Administrator to the Planning Commission.  
 
BACKGROUND & DISCUSSION 
 
The City of Pinole currently requires that the architectural design of all new 
development projects and certain types of home remodels be reviewed and 
approved by the City prior to construction. The City divides projects into two 
categories for the purpose of design review, Comprehensive Design Review for 
larger projects, and Administrative Design Review for smaller projects. The approval 
authority for Comprehensive Design Review is the Planning Commission. The 
approval authority for Administrative Design Review is the Zoning Administrator. 
 
Design review for single family homes is currently subject to Administrative Design 
Review handled by the Zoning Administrator. On January 21, 2020, the City Council 
considered a proposed ordinance that would amend the Zoning Code so that design 
review for single family homes would be handled by the Planning Commission, not 
the Zoning Administrator. The City Council voted 4-1 to introduce the proposed 
ordinance. The staff report from the January 21, 2020 meeting, which provides more 
background regarding the proposed ordinance, is included as Exhibit B to this report.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There will be no direct fiscal impact if the City Council adopts the proposed 
ordinance. Any additional increased costs will be recovered by the City through 
increased application and processing fees  
 
 

27 of 72



City Council Report 7C 
Feburary 4, 2020 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
A – Proposed Ordinance  
B – January 21, 2020 Staff Report 
 
 
 

 

28 of 72



ATTACHMENT A 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE  

AMENDING TITLE 17 REGARDING  THE APPROVAL AUTHORITY FOR REVIEW 

FOR SINGLE FAMILY DESIGN REVIEW 

WHEREAS, the City currently requires design review for all new development projects 

and certain types of remodels; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of design review is to promote the orderly and harmonious 

growth of the city, to encourage development in keeping with the desired character of the city, 

and to ensure physical and functional compatibility between uses; and 

WHEREAS, Administrative Design Review is for smaller projects, and the approval 

authority is the Zoning Administrator; and  

WHEREAS, Comprehensive Design Review is generally for larger project, and the 

approval authority is the Planning Commission; and  

WHEREAS, new single family homes were previously subject to Comprehensive 

Design Review, but are currently subject to Administrative Design Review; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend the Zoning Code so that design review 

for new single family homes is conducted by the Planning Commission; and 

WHEREAS, Planning Commission review ensures that projects are reviewed by 

multiple individuals and provides a greater opportunity for community engagement and feedback 

on proposed project, and therefore fulfills the purposes of the design review process; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing to consider the 

proposed amendments to the Zoning Code on December 16, 2019, at which time all interested 

persons had the opportunity to be heard; and  

WHEREAS, after close of the public hearing, the Planning Commission recommended 

that the City Council not adopt the proposed amendments to the Zoning Code; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council held a duly noticed public hearing to consider the 

proposed amendments to the Zoning Code on January 21, 2020, at which time all interested 

persons had the opportunity to be heard; and 

WHEREAS, after the close of the public hearing, the City Council considered all public 

comments received both before and during the public hearing, the presentation by city staff, the 

staff report, and all other pertinent documents regarding the proposed zoning code amendment; 

and 

29 of 72



ATTACHMENT A 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the proposed amendments to the Zoning Code 

are consistent with and support the Pinole General Plan by helping to preserve and enhance high-

quality residential neighborhoods; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the proposed Zoning Code amendment is 

intended to transfer design review authority for single family homes to the Planning Commission 

to increase community participate in ensuring the aesthetic quality of the City; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt the proposed changes to the Zoning Code. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Pinole does ordain as follows: 

 

Section 1. Recitals.   

 

The above recitals are true and correct and made a part of this Ordinance. 

 

Section 2. Municipal Code Amendment – Section 17.12.080. 

 

Section 17.12.080, “Administrative Design Review”, is hereby amended to read as follows 

(deletions in strikethrough; additions in underline) : 

 

“17.12.080 ADMINISTRATIVE DESIGN REVIEW  

 

A.    Purpose. The purpose of Administrative Design Review is to provide an efficient process 

for promoting the orderly and harmonious growth of the city, to encourage development in 

keeping with the desired character of the city, and to ensure physical and functional 

compatibility between uses. Administrative design review is intended to provide a process for 

consideration of minor development proposals to ensure that additions and alterations to the 

design and layout of existing development will constitute suitable development and will not 

result in a detriment to the city or to the environment.  

 

B.    Applicability. Administrative design review is required for all structural additions to 

single family, multi-family and non-residential structures. Additions for multi-family and non- 

residential structures that are five hundred (500) square feet or larger require comprehensive 

design review. Furthermore, all new single family homes shall require comprehensive design 

review. Issues related to fire and public works compliance are addressed during the plan check 

process. Issues related to Building Code compliance are addressed at time of building permit 

issuance. 

 

C.    Approving Authority. The designated approving authority for administrative design 

review is the Community Development Director. Administrative design review approval is 

required prior to issuance of any building permits or site improvement plans. 

 

D.    Application Contents. The application for an administrative design review shall be on a 

form prepared as prescribed by the Community Development Director. 

 

30 of 72



ATTACHMENT A 

 

E.    Procedure. The procedures for administrative design review shall be as provided in 

Chapter 17.10 (General Application Processing Procedures) except as provided below: 

1.   No public hearing shall be required unless required below.  

2.   The city shall provide mailed notice pursuant to Section 17.10.050.B.2. that the city is 

considering an application for administrative design review. In addition to the content 

required under Section 17.10.050B., the mailed notice shall advise persons that plans for 

the project are available for public review at City Hall and that the application will be 

decided unless a written request for hearing is received by the City Community 

Development Department on or before a date specified in the notice, which shall be at 

least ten (10) working days after the date of mailing. 

3.   If no timely written request for hearing is filed, the application shall be administratively 

approved by the Community Development Director if it is deemed to be consistent with 

the provisions of this title. 

4.   If a timely written request for hearing is filed, the application shall no longer be 

administratively processed and shall instead be processed in accordance with the 

procedures for comprehensive design review. 

5.   The Community Development Director may elevate any project to the comprehensive 

design review process if in the opinion of the Community Development Director, such 

project, because of location, size, design, or other aspect of the project, warrants a 

hearing before the Planning Commission. 

 

F.    Approval Findings. The approving authority shall make the following findings to approve 

or conditionally approve an administrative design review application: 

      1.   Compliance with the general plan and any applicable specific plans. 

      2.   Compliance with applicable provisions of the Zoning Code. 

      3.   Compatibility with the surrounding neighborhood. 

4.   Qualifying single-family residential, multi-family residential, and residential mixed-use 

projects shall comply with all relevant standards and guidelines in the city's currently 

adopted design guidelines for residential development. 

 

G.    Appeals. Appeal of the approving authority's action on the request for administrative 

design review permit shall be made in accordance with the procedures specified in 

Section 17.10.070 (Appeals). 

 

H.    Expiration. All approved administrative design review permits are subject to the 

provisions set forth in Section 17.10.120 (Revocation).”  

 

Section 3. Municipal Code Amendment – Section 17.12.150. 

 

Section 17.12.150, “Comprehensive Design Review”, is hereby amended to read as follows 

(deletions in strikethrough; additions in underline) : 

 

“17.12.150 COMPREHENSIVE DESIGN REVIEW 

 

A.    Purpose. The purpose of comprehensive design review is to provide a process for 

promoting the orderly and harmonious growth of the city, to encourage development in keeping 

31 of 72



ATTACHMENT A 

 

with the desired character of the city, and to ensure physical and functional compatibility 

between uses. This comprehensive design review is intended to provide a process for 

consideration of development proposals to ensure that the design and layout of commercial, 

retail, industrial or institutional uses, or multi-family residential development will constitute 

suitable development and will not result in a detriment to the City of Pinole or to the 

environment.  

 

B.    Applicability. A comprehensive design review permit is required for the following items: 

1.   New single-family and multi-family residential development; 

2.   New non-residential development (e.g., commercial, office, industrial, public/quasi-

public); 

3.   Additions to existing multi-family and non-residential structures equal to or greater than 

500 square feet; and 

4.   Any item not listed in Section 17.12.150.C, for which the Community Development 

Director determines that a comprehensive design review permit is required. 

 

C.    Exemptions. The following structures and activities are exempt from comprehensive 

design review. However, such structures may require additional permits, such as a building 

permit, and plan check to ensure compliance with adopted Building Code and related 

construction code standards and applicable Zoning Code provisions and public works 

encroachment permits. 

1.   Single-family homes when consistent with the City of Pinole Residential Design Criteria 

and Guidelines Accessory Dwelling Units, regardless of size. 

2.   Additions to a single-family home of less than 500 square feet when consistent with the 

City of Pinole Residential Design Criteria and Guidelines. 

3.   Additions to multi-family and non-residential structures less than five hundred (500) 

square feet in size. 

4.   Accessory structures consistent with the provisions of this title. 

5.   Installation of signs. 

6.   Repairs and maintenance to the site or existing structures that do not add to, enlarge, or 

expand the area occupied by the structure or the gross floor area of the structure. 

7.   Interior alterations that do not increase the gross floor area within the structure or 

change/expand the permitted use of the structure (e.g., tenant improvements). 

8.   Construction, alteration, or maintenance by a public utility or public agency of 

underground or overhead utilities intended to service existing or nearby approved 

developments (e.g., water, gas, electric or telecommunication supply or disposal systems, 

including wires, mains, drains, sewers, pipes, conduits, cables, fire-alarm boxes, police 

call boxes, traffic signals, hydrants, and similar facilities and equipment). 

9.   Alteration or maintenance of public park and recreation facilities. 

 

D.    Approving Authority. The designated approving authority for comprehensive design 

review is the Planning Commission. Comprehensive design review approval is required prior to 

issuance of any ministerial building permits or site improvement plans and prior to or in 

conjunction with discretionary action of corresponding development applications (e.g., 

conditional use permit, variance). Comprehensive actions include, but are not limited to, new 

construction and wholesale redevelopment of existing sites. 

32 of 72

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=california(pinole_ca)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2717.12.150%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_17.12.150


ATTACHMENT A 

 

 

E.    Application Content. The application for a comprehensive design review shall be on a 

form prepared as prescribed by the Community Development Director. 

 

F.    Public Hearing/Notice. The city shall provide notice and a public hearing for continuation 

of the approval, modification, revocation or appeal of an application for a comprehensive design 

review in accordance with Section 17.10.50 (Public Hearing and Public Notice). 

 

G.    Approval Findings. A comprehensive design review permit or any modification thereto 

shall be granted only when the designated approving authority makes all of the following 

findings: 

1.   The proposed project is consistent with the objectives of the general plan and complies 

with applicable zoning regulations, planned development, master plan or specific plan 

provisions, improvement standards, and other applicable standards and regulations 

adopted by the city; 

2.   The proposed project will not create conflicts with vehicular, bicycle, or pedestrian 

transportation modes of circulation; 

3.  The site layout (orientation and placement of buildings and parking areas), as well as the 

landscaping, lighting, and other development features, are compatible with and 

complement the existing surrounding environment and ultimate character of the area 

under the general plan and applicable specific plans; and 

4.   Qualifying single-family residential, multi-family residential, and residential mixed-use 

projects shall comply with all relevant standards and guidelines in the city's currently 

adopted design guidelines for residential development. 

 

H.    Considerations. In conducting comprehensive design review, the designated approving 

authority shall consider the following: 

1.   Considerations relating to site layout, the orientation and location of building, signs, other 

structures, open spaces, landscaping, and other development features in relation to the 

physical characteristics, zoning, and land use of the site and surrounding properties. 

2.   Considerations relating to traffic, safety, and traffic congestion, including the effect of the 

development plan on traffic conditions on abutting streets, the layout of the site with 

respect to locations and dimensions of vehicular and pedestrian entrances, exits, 

driveways, and walkways, the adequacy of off-street parking facilities to prevent traffic 

congestion, and the circulation patterns within the boundaries of the development. 

3.   Considerations necessary to ensure that the proposed development is consistent with the 

general plan and all applicable specific plans or other city plans, including, but not 

limited to, the density of residential units. 

4.  Considerations relating to the availability of city services, including, but not limited to, 

water, sewer, drainage, police and fire, and whether such services are adequate based 

upon city standards. 

 

I.    Conditions/Guarantees. The approving authority may impose conditions and/or require 

guarantees for comprehensive design review to ensure compliance with this section and other 

applicable provisions of this title and to prevent adverse or detrimental impact to the surrounding 

neighborhood. 

33 of 72



ATTACHMENT A 

 

 

J.    Permit Issuance. The final action on comprehensive design review by the approving 

authority shall constitute approval of the permit. Such permit shall only become valid after the 

designated appeal period has been completed, per the provisions as set forth in 

Section 17.10.80 (Effective Date). 

 

K.    Appeals. Appeal of the approving authority's action on the request for a comprehensive 

design review permit shall be made in accordance with the procedures specified in 

Section 17.10.070 (Appeals). 

 

L.    Expiration. All approved comprehensive design review permits are subject to the 

provisions set forth in Section 17.10.100 (Permit Time Limits, Extensions and Expiration).” 

 

Section 4. Severability. 

 

If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is 

held invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance, including the application of such part or provision 

to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby and shall continue in full force 

and effect. To this end, provisions of this Ordinance are severable. The City Council of the City 

of Pinole hereby declares that it would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, 

paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase hereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more 

sections, subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, or phrases be held 

unconstitutional, invalid, or unenforceable. 

 

Section 6. California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”). 

 

The proposed amendments are exempt from CEQA based on the rule set forth in CEQA 

Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for 

causing a significant effect on the environment. As a series of text amendments and additions, it 

can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the proposed amendments to the  

Zoning Code will have a significant effect on the environment.  

 

Section 7. Effective Date. 

 

In accordance with California Government Code Section 36937, this Ordinance shall take effect 

and be in force on the thirty-first day after adoption. 

 

Section 8. Publication. 

 

Within fifteen (15) days after the passage of this Ordinance the City Clerk shall cause this 

Ordinance or a summary thereof to be published or to be posted in at least three public places in 

the City of Pinole in accordance with the requirements of California Government Code Section 

36933. 

 

 

 

34 of 72



ATTACHMENT A 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this ____ day of _______ 2020, by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

 

             

       Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Heather Iopu, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Eric S. Casher, City Attorney  

 

35 of 72



 CITY COUNCIL 
 REPORT 8A

DATE: JANUARY 21, 2020 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FROM: ERIC S. CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY 

COPY: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PINOLE ZONING CODE TO 
CHANGE THE APPROVAL AUTHORITY FOR DESIGN REVIEW OF 
SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council consider a potential Zoning Code 
amendment (ZCA 20-01) that would change the approving authority for design 
review of single family homes from the Zoning Administrator to the Planning 
Commission.  

BACKGROUND 

The City of Pinole currently requires that the architectural design of all new 
development projects and certain types of home remodels be reviewed and 
approved by the City prior to construction. The purpose of design review is to 
promote the orderly and harmonious growth of the City, to encourage development 
to keep with the desired character of the City, and to ensure physical and functional 
compatibility between uses. 

The City divides projects into two categories for the purpose of design review, 
Comprehensive Design Review for larger projects, and Administrative Design 
Review for smaller projects. The approval authority for Comprehensive Design 
Review is the Planning Commission. The approval authority for Administrative 
Design Review is the Zoning Administrator. 

Design review for single family homes was historically handled by the Planning 
Commission or a similar Council-appointed commission. However, in 2010 the City 
Council amended the Zoning Code to change the approving authority from the 
Planning Commission to the Zoning Administrator in order to decrease delays for 
projects that are generally uncontroversial.  

Recently, the City Council directed the Municipal Code Update Subcommittee to 
consider an amendment to the Zoning Code to return the authority for design review 
of single family residential development projects to the Planning Commission. The 

ATTACHMENT B 
2/4/2020  ITEM 7C

36 of 72



City Council Report 8A 
January 21, 2020 

Municipal Code Update Subcommittee met on October 25, 2019, and directed the 
City Attorney’s Office to prepare an amendment to the Zoning Code transferring 
design review authority from the Zoning Administrator to the Planning Commission. 
The Planning Commission considered the proposed Zoning Code amendment at its 
December 16, 2019 meeting, and unanimously recommended that the City Council 
keep design review authority for single family homes with the Zoning Administrator 
and not adopt the ordinance amending the Zoning Code.   

DISCUSSION 

The City currently has two types of design review: Comprehensive Design Review 
and Administrative Design Review. Comprehensive Design Review is generally for 
larger project, and the approval authority is the Planning Commission. (PMC § 
17.12.150.) The Planning Commission’s decision can be appealed to the City 
Council. Administrative Design Review is for smaller projects, and the approval 
authority is the Zoning Administrator. (PMC § 17.12.080.) The Zoning 
Administrator’s decision can be appealed to the Planning Commission.  Currently, 
single family homes that are consistent with adopted standards, such as height and 
setback requirements, are subject to Administrative Design Review. (PMC § 
17.12.150(c)(1).) Regardless of whether the Planning Commission or Zoning 
Administrator conducts the review, in order for design review approval to be given, 
certain findings must be made, including that the project complies with all applicable 
provisions of the Zoning Code and is compatible with the surrounding neighborhood. 

Design review for single family homes was historically handled by the Planning 
Commission or a similar Council-appointed commission. However, in 2010 the City 
Council amended the Zoning Code to change the approving authority in order to 
decrease the processing time for projects that are generally uncontroversial. Notice 
that the Zoning Administrator is considering a project, and notice of the Zoning 
Administrator’s decision, are mailed to property owners within 300 feet of the project. 
The Decisions of the Zoning Administrator can be appealed to the Planning 
Commission. In addition, the Zoning Administrator may choose to refer a single 
family home to the Planning Commission for Comprehensive Design Review 
Process. 

If the proposed amendment to the Zoning Code is approved, design review for single 
family homes will be handled by the Planning Commission, not the Zoning 
Administrator. Currently single family homes are only reviewed by the Planning 
Commission if there is an appeal.  

The Planning Commission considered the proposed Zoning Code amendment at its 
December 16, 2019 meeting. The Planning Commission unanimously recommended 
(with 2 commissioners absent) that the City Council keep design review authority for 
single family homes with the Zoning Administrator and not adopt the amendment 
transferring authority to the Planning Commission. Commissioners stated that they 
thought the current process was working fine and did not need to be changed. Some 

37 of 72



City Council Report 8A 
January 21, 2020 

commissioners expressed concern that requiring Planning Commission approval 
would delay projects and increase costs for applicants.  

In considering the proposed amendments, the City Council should be aware of 
relevant State laws. Over the last few years, in response to the State’s housing 
crisis, the State Legislature has imposed limits on the discretionary authority of cities 
regarding housing projects. The Housing Accountability Act prohibits the City from 
denying a project that satisfies all objective standards adopted by the City. Similarly, 
the Housing Crisis Act, which goes into effect on January 1, 2020, prohibits the City 
from adopting any new subjective design standards for housing projects.  

An objective design standard is one that requires no subjective judgment by a public 
official and is uniformly verifiable. For example, a requirement that a home be no 
larger than 3,000 square feet is an objective standard. In contrast, a requirement 
that a home be “compatible” with the neighborhood is a subjective standard. The 
City is using a state grant funded by SB 2  to, in part, create objective design 
guidelines to ensure appropriate design aesthetics in Pinole.  While these and other 
similar laws do not prohibit the City from establishing aesthetic requirements for 
housing projects, and do not prohibit the City Council from making the Planning 
Commission responsible for design review for single family homes, they do mean 
that the City may have difficulty enforcing subjective design requirements for certain 
housing projects.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

There will be no direct fiscal impact if the City Council adopts the proposed 
ordinance. Design review for single family homes by the Planning Commission will 
require increased staff time, but those costs will be recovered by the City through 
increased application and processing fees for single family homes. The fee for 
administrative design review is currently $549, and the fee for comprehensive design 
review is currently $2,679.  

ATTACHMENTS 

A – Proposed Ordinance 

38 of 72



   

 
 

 CITY COUNCIL 
 REPORT                                                                7D 
  

 
DATE: FEBRUARY 4, 2020 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ANDREA MILLER, FINANCE DIRECTOR 
  DEBBIE LONG, CITY TREASURER 
   
SUBJECT: RECEIVE THE QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT FOR THE 

QUARTER ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2019 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive the Quarterly Investment Report for the quarter ending December 31, 2019.     
     
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Pinole Investment Policy calls for a Quarterly Investment Report to be 
submitted to the City Council.  The enclosed Investment Report for the reporting period 
ended December 31, 2019 conforms to the reporting guidelines for California public 
agencies set forth in Section 53646 of the Government Code.   
 
REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
All investments held at December 31, 2019 conform to the City’s Investment Policy and 
State Regulations.  A summary of the balances held in the investment portfolio 
(Attachment A), at December 31, 2019, follows: 

 
Investments Market Value % of Portfolio

Investment Pool - LAIF 22,963,053 55.20%
Investment Pool - JPA 3,258,500 7.83%
Money Market Savings 8,143,135 19.58%
Mutual Funds 100,925 0.24%
Certificates of Deposit 3,855,335 9.27%
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 2,279,233 5.48%
Federal Agency Securities 996,880 2.40%
Investment Total $           41,597,060 100.0%

 
 
 
 
 

39 of 72



City Council Report 7D 
February 4, 2020  2 

Investment Yield and Duration: 

The current aggregate yield of the City’s investment portfolio is stabilized at 1.600%.  This 
investment yield is lower than the current yield of 2.040% for the State of California’s 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).  LAIF yields have slightly decreased over the past 
year but remain higher than long-term investment yields in some cases which have 
caused our aggregate yield to be less than the LAIF yield.  In addition, 19.58% of our 
portfolio is in money market savings accounts which earn 0.063% interest. LAIF and other 
pooled funds make up 63.28% of our investment portfolio.   

Long-term investments make up 17.14% of our portfolio, and currently yield 2.028% 
average; which is slightly lower than LAIF.  Earnings on investments held until maturity 
typically fluctuate with market conditions and are considered “unrealized” prior to maturity.  
The City expects to yield a gain on all investments at maturity. 

 

Investments Q2-2020 Yield Q2-2019 Yield 
Investment Pool - LAIF 2.040 2.210
Investment Pool - JPA 1.765 2.635
Money Market Savings 0.063 0.063
Mutual Funds 1.595 1.940
Certificates of Deposit 2.023 1.933
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 2.543 2.975
Federal Agency Securities 1.520 1.495
Municipal Bonds [1] 0.000 2.250
Average Yield 1.600 1.860

 

[1] Municipal Bonds are at 0% yield because the City no longer holds any.  

 
Cash Flows: 

Sufficient cash inflows were available from July 2019 through December 2019 to meet all 
City expenditures.  In addition, the City has sufficient cash flow at December 31, 2019 to 
cover anticipated expenditures through the next six months. 
 
Investment Strategy: 

The City utilizes a passive investment management approach by buying and holding 
securities until maturity.  A “laddered maturity” investment strategy is applied to a portion 
of the asset allocation in our investment portfolio, currently 17.14%.  A laddered portfolio 
is structured with securities that have different maturity dates.  As securities are called or 
mature, proceeds are reinvested in a new security with a longer term at the end of the 
ladder.  Laddering helps to minimize interest-rate risk, increase liquidity, and diversify 
credit risk. 
 

40 of 72



City Council Report 7D 
February 4, 2020  3 

Of the total investment portfolio, 82.86% is held in investment pools and money market 
accounts.  Of this amount, LAIF currently represents 55.20% of the City’s investment 
portfolio.  Interest earnings of $133,347 were generated in LAIF for the quarter ended 
December 31, 2019.  The Investment Policy allows for up to 100% of the City’s investment 
portfolio in LAIF which is currently at 2.040% yield.    
 
Safekeeping for a General Reserve Investment Account: 
 
The City continues to maintain a Safekeeping account to augment the City’s participation 
in the State’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) and the County’s CalTrust Pools.  
This provides the Finance Director with the ability to implement a directed investment plan 
with longer investment duration thereby yielding greater investment earnings on federal 
agency securities of comparable credit risk.  
 
The Federal Reserve has cut interest rates three times since July; by 0.25% on July 31, 
2019, by 0.25% on September 18, 2019, and by another 0.25% on October 30, 2019.  
The Federal Funds Rate has historically compared to LAIF (PMIA, Pooled Money 
Investment Account) interest rates (see chart below). Currently the Federal Funds Rate 
is below LAIF.   

 
 

Staff continues to monitor rates of return on City funds invested and make 
recommendations as needed to complement our participation in LAIF and to maintain 
steady investment yields.  All City investments held are in accordance with the City’s 
Investment Policy.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

All City cash and investments are pooled and interest is allocated to funds quarterly based 
on the average balance of each fund during the quarter ending.  Interest earnings for the 
period ending December 31, 2019 are higher than the prior year’s second quarter 
earnings of $105,000 as a result of the increase in LAIF account allocations and higher 
yields.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A –Investment Report - Quarter Ending December 31, 2019 

41 of 72



CITY OF PINOLE
INVESTMENT REPORT DECEMBER 2019
PORTFOLIO SUMMARY

Weighted

Days to Average

Investments Par Value Market Value Book Value % of Portfolio Maturity Yield Maturity

Investment Pool - LAIF 22,963,053                22,963,053                 22,963,053                55.20% 1                       2.040 1
Investment Pool - JPA 3,258,500                   3,258,500                   3,258,500                  7.83% 1                       1.765 0
Money Market Savings 8,143,135                   8,143,135                   8,143,135                  19.58% 1                       0.063 0
Mutual Funds 100,925                      100,925                      100,925                      0.24% 1                       1.595 0
Certificates of Deposit 3,840,000                   3,855,335                   3,855,335                  9.27% 905                  2.023 5
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 2,250,000                   2,279,233                   2,279,233                  5.48% 751                  2.543 11
Federal Agency Securities 1,000,000                   996,880                      996,880                      2.40% 603 1.520 14

Subtotal Investments 41,555,613$             41,597,060$              41,597,060               100.00% 377 1.600 5

Average Years: 1.0
Cash

Mechanics Bank - Vendor Checking * 1,648,523                   1,648,523                   1,648,523                  1                      
Bank of the West ‐ Payroll Checking * 995,352                    995,352                      995,352                      1                      
Bank of the West - Checking (Credit Card Clearing) * 560,530                    560,530                      560,530                      1

Subtotal Cash 3,204,405 3,204,405 3,204,405 1

Total Cash and Investments 44,760,018$             44,801,465$              44,801,465$             

*Not included in yield calculations

The above investments are consistent with the City's Investment Policy and allowable under current legislation of the State of California.  Investments were selected using safety, 
liquidity and yield as the criteria.  The source of the market values for the investments are provided by US Bank in accordance with the California Government Code requirement.  
The City has sufficient cash flow to cover anticipated expenditures through the next six months.

Investment Pool
63%

Money Market Savings
20%

Mutual Funds
0%

Certificates of Deposit
9%

Medium‐Term Corporate 
Notes
6%

Federal Agency Securities
2%

CITY OF PINOLE ‐ INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
DECEMBER 2019

ATTACHMENT A

42 of 72



CITY OF PINOLE
INVESTMENT REPORT DECEMBER 2019
PORTFOLIO DETAILS

Type / 
Account 
Number CUSIP Issuer Investment Description Manager GL Acct # Par Value Market Value Book Value Rate Yield

Days to 
Maturity

S&P 
Rating

Maturity 
Date

Weighted 
Average 
Maturity

Investment Pool
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Pooled Treasury - State of California LAIF 999-10201 22,963,053            22,963,053             22,963,053        2.040 2.040 1              N/A 1
CalTrust - Short Term Fund (City) Pooled Treasury - Joint Power Financing Authority CalTrust 999-10202 24,139                   24,139                    24,139               1.820 1.820 1              N/A 0
CalTrust - Medium Term Fund (City) Pooled Treasury - Joint Power Financing Authority CalTrust 999-10203 3,234,361              3,234,361               3,234,361          1.710 1.710 1              N/A 0

Subtotal and Average 26,221,554            26,221,554             26,221,554        1.857 1.857 1              0

Money Market Savings
Mechanics Bank Money Market Savings (City) City 999-10102 5,418,026              5,418,026               5,418,026          0.080 0.080 1              N/A 0
Bank of the West Money Market Savings - Police Evidence Trust City 999-10104 107,731                 107,731                  107,731             0.080 0.080 1              N/A 0

84501100 999491905 Wells Fargo Bank Money Market - WPCP Escrow Wells Fargo 503-10302 2,617,377              2,617,377               2,617,377          0.030 0.030 1              N/A 0
Subtotal and Average 8,143,135              8,143,135               8,143,135          0.063 0.063 1              0

Mutual Funds
19-516680 U.S. Bank Accrued Income - City Reserve US Bank 150-10110 31,934                   31,934                    31,934               1.980 1.980 1              N/A 0
19-516680 31846V203 1st American Government Obligation Fund Mutual Fund Shares - Class "D" - City Reserve US Bank 150-10110 68,991                   68,991                    68,991               1.210 1.210 1              N/A 0

Subtotal and Average 100,925                 100,925                  100,925             1.595 1.595 1              0

Certificates of Deposit
19-516680 02007GLR2 Ally Bank Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 247,000                 247,049                  247,049             1.800 1.800 986          N/A 9/12/2022 6
19-516680 02587DJ90 American Express Centurion Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 247,000                 248,252                  248,252             2.250 2.240 344          N/A 12/9/2020 2
19-516680 05580ATL8 Bmw Bank North America Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 247,000                 246,849                  246,849             1.800 1.800 1,078       N/A 12/13/2022 6
19-516680 140420A59 Capital One Bank Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 248,000                 247,065                  247,065             1.600 1.610 581          N/A 8/3/2021 3
19-516680 29976DQ86 Everbank Jacksonville FL Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 125,000               124,619                 124,619           1.500 1.500 590        N/A 8/12/2021 2
19-516680 38149MAY9 Goldman Sachs BK USA New York Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 246,000               252,261                 252,261           2.600 2.530 1,252     N/A 6/5/2023 8
19-516680 48126XAH8 JP Morgan Chase Bank Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 247,000                 246,081                  246,081             1.650 1.660 594          N/A 8/16/2021 4
19-516680 58404DFE6 Medallion Bk Salt Lake City Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 249,000                 248,378                  248,378             1.700 1.700 993          N/A 9/19/2022 6
19-516680 59013KCZ7 Merrick Bank Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 249,000                 247,324                  247,324             1.650 1.660 1,368       N/A 9/29/2023 8
19-516680 61690UGW4 Morgan Stanley Bank Na Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 246,000                 252,266                  252,266             2.600 2.530 1,253       N/A 6/6/2023 8
19-516680 61760AF46 Morgan Stanley Private Bk Natlassn Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 246,000                 252,266                  252,266             2.600 2.530 1,253       N/A 6/6/2023 8
19-516680 795450XM2 Sallie Mae Bank Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 125,000                 125,645                  125,645             2.200 2.190 351          N/A 12/16/2020 1
19-516680 856285QG9 State Bk Indiana New York N Y Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 250,000                 250,653                  250,653             2.850 2.840 1,632       N/A 6/19/2024 10
19-516680 85916VDN2 Sterling Bank of Poplar Bluff Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 247,000                 245,357                  245,357             1.650 1.660 1,357       N/A 9/18/2023 8
19-516680 9497485W3 Wells Fargo Bank Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 249,000                 248,699                  248,699             1.750 1.750 534          N/A 6/17/2021 3
19-516680 949495AF2 Wells Fargo Bank Natl Bk West Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 247,000                 247,168                  247,168             1.850 1.850 1,095       N/A 12/30/2022 7
19-516680 96009JAR8 Westfield Bank Mass Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 125,000                 125,404                  125,404             2.550 2.540 132          N/A 5/11/2020 0

Subtotal and Average 3,840,000              3,855,335               3,855,335          2.035 2.023 905          5

Medium-Term Corporate Notes
19-516680 037833BS8 Apple Inc. 2.25% Corporate MTN 02/23/2021 - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 500,000                 502,975                  502,975             2.250 2.240 420          AA+ 2/23/2021 5
19-516680 478160BT0 Johnson Johnson 2.05% Corporate MTN 3/1/23 - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 750,000                 754,583                  754,583             2.050 2.040 1,156       AAA 3/1/2023 21
19-516680 594918BW3 Microsoft Corp 2.40 % Corporate MTN 02/06/22- City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 500,000                 507,070                  507,070             2.400 2.370 768          AAA 2/6/2022 9
19-516680 94988J5T0 Wells Fargo Bank Na 3.625 % Corporate MTN 10/22/21- City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 500,000                 514,605                  514,605             3.625 3.520 661          A+ 10/22/2021 8

Subtotal and Average 2,250,000              2,279,233               2,279,233          2.581 2.543 751          11

Federal Agency Securities
19-516680 3130A92D2 Federal Home Loan Banks 1.52% Agency Bond 8/25/2021 - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 1,000,000              996,880                  996,880             1.520 1.520 603          AA+ 8/25/2021 14

Subtotal and Average 1,000,000              996,880                  996,880             1.520 1.520 603          14

Investment Portfolio Total and Average 41,555,613$     41,597,060$        41,597,060$  1.609 1.600 377 5

Average Years : 1.0

ATTACHMENT A

43 of 72



   

 

  CITY COUNCIL  
  REPORT 7E 

 
 
DATE: FEBRUARY 4, 2020 
 
TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ERIC S. CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY 
 
COPY: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION APPROVING CITY MANAGER ANDREW MURRAY’S 

RESIDENCE OUTSIDE OF THE CITY OF PINOLE 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council waive the residency requirement for City 
Manager Andrew Murray as provided for in Pinole Municipal Code Section 2.04.020.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Pinole Municipal Code Section 2.04.020 provides that within one hundred eighty (180) 
days of reporting to work the City Manager must become a resident of the City of 
Pinole unless the City Council approves his or her residence outside the City.  The 
City Council may approve the City Manager’s residency outside of the City for the full 
duration of the City Manager’s tenure.   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The City Council conducted a successful recruitment for the position of City Manager 
in November 2019.  On December 17, 2019 the City Council appointed Andrew 
Murray as the new City Manager for the City of Pinole.  Mr. Murray does not currently 
live in the City of Pinole. 
 
The proposed Resolution, Attachment A, waives the residency requirement and 
approves Mr. Murray’s residence outside of the City throughout his tenure as City 
Manager as provided for in Pinole Municipal Code Section 2.04.020. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Approval of the Proposed Resolution will have no fiscal impact.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment A – Proposed Resolution 

44 of 72



ATTACHMENT A 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-__ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APPROVING CITY MANAGER 

ANDREW MURRAY’S RESIDENCE OUTSIDE OF THE CITY OF PINOLE 

WHEREAS, Section 2.04.020 of the Pinole Municipal Code provides that at the 
time of appointment a City Manager shall not be required as a condition of the 
appointment to reside in the City of Pinole; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2.04.020 also provides that within one hundred eighty (180) 
days after reporting for work the City Manager must become a resident of the City of 
Pinole unless the City Council approves his or her residence outside the City; and 

WHEREAS, on December 17, 2019, the City Council of the City of Pinole approved 
the appointment of Andrew Murray as City Manager; and  

WHEREAS, Andrew Murray does not currently live in the City of Pinole; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has the authority to approve the City Manager’s 
residence outside of the City of Pinole pursuant to Municipal Code Section 2.04.020; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby approves Andrew Murray’s residence outside 
the City during all relevant times of his tenure as City Manager. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Pinole 
hereby waives the residency requirement for City Manager Andrew Murray and approves 
Mr. Murray residing outside of the City of Pinole during his tenure as the City Manager.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on 
the 4th day of FEBRUARY 2020, by the following vote: 

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS: 
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: 
ABSENT:    COUNCILMEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS: 

I, hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on this 4th day of February 2020. 

___________________________
Heather Iopu,CMC  
City Clerk

45 of 72



   

 CITY COUNCIL   
 REPORT 7F 
  

 
 
DATE: FEBRUARY 4, 2020 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS  
 
FROM: TAMARA MILLER, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR/CITY 

ENGINEER 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE REVISED RESPONSE TO GRAND JURY REPORT NO. 

1907, "STORMWATER TRASH REDUCTION" 
  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve and authorize the Mayor to sign a 
revised response to the Grand Jury report No. 1907, “Stormwater Trash Reduction.” 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Early in California’s history, the California Constitution established grand juries in 
each county.  The California Penal Code includes provisions on the formation, 
powers, and duties of grand juries.   
 
With respect to public agencies, grand juries are authorized to “investigate and 
report upon the operations, accounts, and records of the officers, departments, 
functions, and the method or systems of performing the duties of any such city or 
joint powers agency and make such recommendations as it may deem proper and 
fit.”  (Cal. Penal Code section 925a)  Within 90 days after the grand jury submits a 
report regarding the operations of any public agency, the “governing body of the 
public agency shall comment to the presiding judge of the superior court on the 
findings and recommendations pertaining to matters under the control of the 
governing body...”  (Cal. Penal Code section 933(c))  
 
REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
In June 2019, the Grand Jury submitted report No. 1907, “Stormwater Trash 
Reduction,” and required that the City of Pinole and other public agencies in the 
County respond regarding the report’s findings and recommendations. 
 
The Grand Jury made nine findings and four recommendations in the Report.  The 
City of Pinole was required to respond specifically to five of the findings and three 
recommendations. City staff prepared a draft letter of response to the findings and 
recommendations. On August 20, 2019, the City Council approved the response, 
which staff subsequently submitted to the Grand Jury. 
 

46 of 72



City Council Report 7F 
February 4, 2020 
 
  2 
In a letter dated December 12, 2019, the Grand Jury requested that the City review 
and resubmit responses to two recommendations so that they would conform to the 
legally permitted response options. City staff has created a draft revised letter of 
response, conforming to permitted response options, for Council’s consideration and 
possible approval. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Fiscal impacts of providing a response to the letter are minor. But the overall fiscal 
impacts for trash capture compliance as per the recommendations in the report are 
not yet known. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A: Draft Revised City of Pinole Response  
B:  Grand Jury Report: “Stormwater Trash Reduction” 
C: Pinole’s Responses to the Grand Jury Report August 21, 2019 
 
 
 

47 of 72



CITY OF PINOLE 
2131 Pear Street Phone: (510) 724-9833 
Pinole, CA  94564 FAX: (510) 724-9826 

www.ci.pinole.ca.us 

February 4, 2020 

Richard S. Nakano, Foreperson 
Contra Costa County Civil Grand Jury 
P. O. Box 431 
Martinez, CA 94553  

Re: City of Pinole Revised Response to Grand Jury Report No. 1907: “Stormwater Trash 
Reduction” by 2019 Contra Costa Grand Jury 

Dear Mr. Nakano, 

Below please find the City of Pinole’s responses to Grand Jury Report No. 1907: “Stormwater 
Trash Reduction”. 

Grand Jury Findings: 

1. The 2015 Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit requires most the cities, towns
to take action to reduce trash discharge by 80%, from 2009 baseline levels, by
July 1, 2019.

Response:  The City of Pinole agrees with this finding. 

4. In June, 2018, Hercules and Pinole were issued Cease and Desist Orders by the
Water Board requiring them to improve their performance in meeting the trash
reduction goals.

Response: The City of Pinole agrees with this finding. 

6. Both CCCWP and LAFCO report that unfunded federal and state mandated
stormwater permit compliance programs are challenged for cities, towns, and
the County.

Response: The City of Pinole agrees with this finding. 

7. Concord, El Cerrito, Hercules, Lafayette, Martinez, Pinole, Pittsburg, Richmond,
San Pablo and Walnut Creek have established ordinances banning Styrofoam
food packaging in their communities.

Response: The City of Pinole agrees with this finding. 

ATTACHMENT A

48 of 72



 

 

 
8. Caltrans reports that highways and ramps along portions of Highway 4 and 24, 

and Interstates 80, 580, and 680 in Antioch, El Cerrito, Richmond, and the 
unincorporated areas of the County are high trash generation areas. 

 
  Response: The City of Pinole partially disagrees with this finding.  The City of Pinole 

should also be listed as impacted by high trash generation along the portion of 
Interstate 80 and the ramps in Pinole.  

 
9. No narrative summary of the accomplishments, challenges, cost and funds 

needed to fully comply with the Permit is provided in the required annual 
reports prepared by CCCWP, the County and each city and town. 

 
 Response: The City of Pinole agrees with this finding. 

 
Grand Jury Recommendations:  
 

1. The City Councils of Hercules and Pinole should each consider directing their 
city manager to implement trash controls to bring them into compliance with 
80% trash reduction goal by December 31, 2019. 

 
 Response: The recommendation has been implemented. Summary as follows: 
 

R1-1. The City of Pinole adopted a trash capture ordinance in late 2017. The City 
hosted a vendor fair to introduce commercial property owners and managers to trash 
capture manufacturers and installers. Implementation and compliance efforts are 
ongoing. The City has performed three direct mailings at targeted commercial property 
owners and managers educating them about the requirements of the ordinance. We 
have experienced a significant number of property owners and managers seeking and 
achieving compliance. We continue to address compliance as a component of code 
enforcement.  
 

R1-2. The Pinole City Council approved as part of the FY19/20 annual operating 
budget more than double the funding for the Code Enforcement division. Staffing has 
increased facilitating more active code enforcement activities.  
 

R1-3.  The City of Pinole hosted a tour with three staff members of the RWQCB to 
demonstrate the compliance efforts. The RWQCB staff was able to see many 
properties in compliance as well as a few that were not in compliance.  
 
R1-4.  A Code Enforcement Officer visited restaurants in Pinole in the 4th quarter of 
FY 18/19 to educate businesses about the Styrofoam ban.  The Code Enforcement 
Officer revisited every restaurant, and all were in compliance with the Styrofoam ban.  
 

R1-5.  In FY 17/18 the Pinole City Council approved a capital project to install trash 
capture devices in several additional medium to low trash volume roads. Additionally, 

ATTACHMENT A

49 of 72



Grand Jury Report Response 1907 
February 4, 2020 
Page 3 
 

 
 

the project included the installation of trash capture devices in City owned parking lots 
in high trash capture areas. 
 

3. The Board of Supervisors and all City/Town Councils should consider directing 
staff to provide concise summary of their Annual reports, citing their 
accomplishments, challenges, cost and funds needed to fully comply with the Permit, 
by December 31, 2019. 
 
Response:  The recommendation has not yet been implemented but will be implemented in 
the future. The City of Pinole will provide a concise summary of our accomplishments with 
the Annual Report. The City of Pinole will cite accomplishments, challenges, costs and funds 
needed to comply with the permit. At this time, it is expected that costs will need to be shared 
by the CCCWP, private property owners, Caltrans, and the City.  
 
4. The Board of Supervisors and all City/Town Councils should consider identifying 
additional revenue sources to fully fund Permit requirements in order to comply with 
the Permit and avoid potential liability, by June 30, 2020. 
 
Response: The recommendation has been implemented. 
 

R4-1.The City of Pinole has directed funding from the Solid Waste Fund for the 
purchase of a Street Sweeper to aid with permit compliance.  
 
R4-2.The City of Pinole directs some road maintenance funding toward the cost of 
implementing the street sweeping program to aid with permit compliance.  
 

R4-3.The City of Pinole has passed an ordinance which requires an investment by 
commercial property owners to provide trash capture devices in private collection 
systems linked to the City of Pinole collection system. 
 

R4-4.The City of Pinole has already passed local sales tax revenue measures for 
Police, Fire, Recreation, and Road Maintenance with portions going to public 
infrastructure operations, maintenance, and improvements. The City’s ability to 
continue to pass local sales tax measures is capped by State law.  

 

R4-5.The City, as part of the CCCCWP, has supported legislation at the State level to 
create a utility user fee structure for stormwater programs.  

 
If you have any questions about the above, please do not hesitate to contact City Manager 
Andrew Murray at (510) 724-8933.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Roy Swearingen 
Mayor 

ATTACHMENT A

50 of 72



ATTACHMENT B

51 of 72



ATTACHMENT B

52 of 72



ATTACHMENT B

53 of 72



ATTACHMENT B

54 of 72



ATTACHMENT B

55 of 72



ATTACHMENT B

56 of 72



ATTACHMENT B

57 of 72



ATTACHMENT B

58 of 72



ATTACHMENT B

59 of 72



ATTACHMENT B

60 of 72



ATTACHMENT B

61 of 72



ATTACHMENT B

62 of 72



ATTACHMENT B

63 of 72



ATTACHMENT B

64 of 72



CITY OF PINOLE 
2131 Pear Street Phone: (510) 724-9833 
Pinole, CA  94564 FAX: (510) 724-9826 

www.ci.pinole.ca.us 

August 21, 2019 

Richard S. Nakano, Foreperson 
Contra Costa County Civil Grand Jury 
P. O. Box 431 
Martinez, CA 94553  

Re:  City of Pinole Response to Grand Jury Report No. 1907: “Stormwater Trash 
Reduction” by 2019 Contra Costa Grand Jury 

Dear Mr. Nakano, 

Below please find the City of Pinole’s responses to Grand Jury Report No. 1907: 
“Stormwater Trash Reduction”. 

Grand Jury Findings: 

1. The 2015 Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit requires most the cities,
towns, and the County to take action to reduce trash discharge by 80%,
from 2009 baseline levels, by July 1, 2019.

Response:  The City of Pinole agrees with this finding. 

4. In June, 2018, Hercules and Pinole were issued Cease and Desist Orders by
the Water Board requiring them to improve their performance in meeting
their trash reduction goals.

Response: The City of Pinole agrees with this finding. 

6. Both the CCCWP and LAFCO report that unfunded federal and state
mandated stormwater permit compliance programs are challenged for
cities, towns, and the County.

Response: The City of Pinole agrees with this finding. 

7. Concord, El Cerrito, Hercules, Lafayette, Martinez, Pinole, Pittsburg,
Richmond, San Pablo and Walnut Creek have established ordinances
banning Styrofoam food packaging in their communities.

Response: The City of Pinole agrees with this finding.  

ATTACHMENT C

65 of 72



Grand Jury Response to Report 1907 
August 21, 2019 
Page 2 

8. Caltrans reports that highways and ramps along portions of Highway 4 and
24, and Interstates 80, 580, and 680 in Antioch, El Cerrito, Richmond, and
the unincorporated areas of the County are high trash generation areas.

Response: The City of Pinole partially disagrees with this finding.  The City of 
Pinole should also be listed as impacted by high trash generation along the 
portion of Interstate 80 and the ramps that are in Pinole.  

9. No narrative summary of the accomplishments, challenges, cost and funds
needed to fully comply with the Permit is provided in the required annual
reports prepared by CCCWP, the County and each city and town.

Response: The City of Pinole agrees with this finding. 

Grand Jury Recommendations: 

1. The City Councils of Hercules and Pinole should each consider directing
their city manager to implement trash controls to bring them into
compliance with 80% trash reduction goal by December 31, 2019.

Response: The recommendation has been implemented. Summary as follows: 

R1-1. The City of Pinole adopted a trash capture ordinance in late 2017. The 
City hosted a vendor fair to introduce commercial property owners and managers 
to trash capture manufacturers and installers. Implementation and compliance 
efforts are ongoing. The City has performed three direct mailings at targeted 
commercial property owners and managers educating them about the 
requirements of the ordinance. We have experience a significant number of 
property owners and managers seeking and achieving compliance. We continue 
to address compliance as a component of our Code Enforcement activities.  

R1-2. The Pinole City Council approved as part of the FY 2019/20 annual 
operating budget more than double the funding for the Code Enforcement 
division. Staffing has increased, facilitating more active Code Enforcement 
activities.  

R1-3. The City of Pinole hosted a tour with three staff members of the RWQCB 
to demonstrate the compliance efforts. The RWQCB staff was able to see many 
properties in compliance as well as a few that were not in compliance.  

R1-4. A Code Enforcement Officer visited restaurants in Pinole in the 4th quarter 
of FY 2018/19 to educate businesses about the Styrofoam ban.  The Code 
Enforcement Officer revisited every restaurant and all were in compliance with 
the Styrofoam ban.  

66 of 72



Grand Jury Response to Report 1907 
August 21, 2019 
Page 3 

R1-5. In FY 2017/18 the Pinole City Council approved a capital project to install 
trash capture devices in several additional medium to low trash volume roads. 
Additionally, the project included the installation of trash capture devices in City 
owned parking lots in high trash capture areas. 

3. The Board of Supervisors and all City/Town Councils should consider
directing staff to provide concise summary of their Annual Reports, citing
their accomplishments, challenges, costs and funds needed to fully comply
with the Permit, by December 31, 2019.

Response:  The recommendation has not yet been implemented but in part will 
be implemented in the future. The City of Pinole will provide a concise summary 
of our accomplishments with our Annual Report. The City of Pinole is not able to 
quantify the full cost to comply with the Permit. Costs will be shared by the 
CCCWP, private property owners, Caltrans, and the City.  

4. The Board of Supervisors and all City/Town Councils should consider
identifying additional review sources to fully fund Permit requirements in
order to comply with the Permit and avoid potential liability, by June 30,
2020. 

Response: The recommendation has, in part, been implemented. Additionally, 
parts of the recommendation require further analysis.  

R4-1. The City of Pinole has directed funding from the Solid Waste Fund for the 
purchase of a Street Sweeper to aid with permit compliance.  

R4-2. The City of Pinole directs some road maintenance funding toward the cost 
of implementing the street sweeping program to aid with permit compliance.  

R4-3. The City, as part of the CCCCWP, has supported legislation at the State 
level to create a utility user fee structure for stormwater programs. The State 
legislature has failed to pass such legislation.  

R4-4. The City of Pinole has already passed local sales tax revenue measures 
for Police, Fire, Recreation, and Road Maintenance. The City’s ability to continue 
to pass local sales tax measures is capped by State law. The City lacks 
adequate funding for public safety and thus needs to focus local funding 
measures here prior to unfunded State mandates.  

67 of 72



Grand Jury Response to Report 1907 
August 21, 2019 
Page 4 

If you have any questions about the above, please do not hesitate to contact City 
Manager Michelle Fitzer at (510) 724-8933.   

Sincerely, 

Peter Murray 
Mayor 

68 of 72



  

 
   

 

 

 CITY COUNCIL 

 REPORT 7G 

  
 

 
DATE:   FEBRUARY 4, 2020 
 
TO:     MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: TAMARA MILLER, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR / CITY 

ENGINEER 
 
SUBJECT:  DECLARE THE LISTED PROPERTY AS SURPLUS AND DESIGNATE 

A PURCHASING OFFICER TO DISPOSE OF THE LISTED PROPERTY 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROCUREMENT POLICY 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt a resolution declaring the listed property 
as surplus and designating the listed staff member to serve as the Purchasing Officer to 
dispose of the listed property in accordance with the Procurement Policy.  
 

BACKGROUND 
 

As per Section VIII of the current Procurement Policy, “the Purchasing Officer is 
responsible for the transfer and disposition of surplus City property. ‘Surplus 
Property’ is used generically to describe any City property that is no longer needed or 
useable by the holding department. The City Council shall declare item(s) surplus prior 
to disposal.” 
 
 

REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
The City has a portable stage that is no longer used for any City functions. It occupies 
valuable storage space. The portable stage is obsolete, and no longer serviceable in its 
current condition.  
 
As per the Purchasing Policy, the Purchasing Officer will, determine the most 
appropriate method of disposal that best serves the interest of the City. The policy 
details appropriate methods as follows:  

 

1. Public Auction - Surplus property may be sold at public auction. City 
staff may conduct public Auctions, or the City may contract with a 
professional auctioneer including professional auction services. 
 

2. Bids - Bids may be solicited for the sale of surplus property. Surplus 

69 of 72



City Council Report 7G 
February 4, 2020  2 

 

property disposed of in this manner shall be sold to the highest 
responsible bidder. 

 
3. Selling for Scrap - Surplus property may be sold as scrap if the 

Purchasing Officer deems that the value of the raw material 
exceeds the value of the property as a whole. 
 

4. Negotiated Sale - Surplus property may be sold outright if the 
Purchasing Officer determines that only one known buyer is 
available or interested in acquiring the property. 
 

5. No Value Item – Where the Purchasing Officer determines that 
specific supplies or equipment are surplus and of minimal value to 
the City due to spoilage, obsolescence or other cause or where the 
Purchasing Officer determines that the cost of disposal of such 
supplies or equipment would exceed the recovery value, the 
Purchasing Officer shall dispose of the same in such a manner 
as he or she deems appropriate and in the best interest of the 
City. 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The listed asset has no value in its current condition. Freeing up storage will ease other 
work functions.   
 
 
ATTACHMENT 
 

A   Resolution 

70 of 72



ATTACHMENT A 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-___ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DECLARING THE LISTED PROPERTY 

AS SURPLUS AND DESIGNATING A PURCHASING OFFICER TO DISPOSE OF 
THE LISTED PROPERTY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROCUREMENT POLICY 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Division has been storing equipment that is 

obsolete and/or too costly to repair; and 
 
WHEREAS, the list of equipment has no value; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Division needs to surplus this equipment to free up 

much needed space; and  
 
WHEREAS, the list of equipment to be declared as surplus property is attached 

as Exhibit A; and   
 
WHEREAS, the list of equipment assigns a Purchasing Officer who in 

accordance with the Procurement Policy will determine the best means of disposal. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Pinole City Council does hereby 

declare the listed property as surplus and designates a Purchasing Officer to dispose of 
the listed property in accordance with the procurement policy. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on 

the 4th day of February 2020 by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 4th day of February 2020. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 

71 of 72



Resolution 

Exhibit A 

No. Description Age
Inventory ID 

/License #
Vin/Serial Number Surplus Reason Purchasing Officer

1

Portable Stage - steel frame with

wooden platform 12' x 40'

estimated over 

30 years none none

Obsolete / no 

railing Tamara Miller

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

  72 of 72


	2020-02-04
	7A
	7B
	7C
	Pinole - SR - 2nd reading Single Family Design Review 2.4.20
	Pinole - Ordinance Amending Design Review Process 1.21.20 (FINAL)
	ATT B
	Pinole - SR - Single Family Design Review 1.21.20 (FINAL)


	7D
	7E
	Pinole - Staff Report re Waiver of City Manager Residency Requirement
	Pinole - Resolution Waiving City Manager Residency Requirement

	7F
	ATTACHMENT A
	Grand Jury Report - Stormwater Trash Reduction
	Grand Jury Finding Response Letter -8.21
	Corrected SR Revised Grand Jury response - final.pdf
	DATE: FEBRUARY 4, 2020
	TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS



	7G
	Surplus 2020.1
	Reso for Surplus Property 2020.1
	surplus property list 2020.1


	Return to Agenda: 


